
7own of Simsbury 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
Water Shortage Ordinance Subcommittee 

Monday, August 6, 2018 

9:00AM 

Main Meeting Room, Town Hall, 933 Hopmeadow Street 

Call to Order 

1} Minutes 
a) April 12, 2017 
b) June 20, 2017 
c) May 2, 2018 
d) May 15, 2018 
e) May 21, 2018 
f) June 5, 2018 

2} Public audience 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

3} Review responses to Board of Selectmen's referral to community 
stakeholders, boards and commissions 

4) Discussion of draft ordinance and next steps 

Adjourn 



  

 

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

Water Shortage Ordinance Subcommittee – Special Meeting 

Tuesday June 20, 2017 

5:00 PM – Simsbury Town Offices – Main Meeting Room 

Minutes 

(Completed by member Chris Kelly) 

 

1) Call to Order 

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:00 PM.  Present were Selectperson’s Chris Kelly and 

Mike Paine.  Also present from the Conservation and Inland Wetland’s Commission was 

Don Rieger.   

 

2) Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3) Public Audience 

 

No comments were made in public audience 

 

4.  Review Version of Water Shortage Ordinance Edited for Previous Feedback. 

 

Don Rieger, Mike Paine, and Chris Kelly reviewed a number of areas of the proposed 

ordinance and identified changes to be submitted to the Town Attorney. 

 

These areas are contained in the grid below.  Mike Paine made a motion approved by Chris 

Kelly to forward  these edits to the Town Attorney.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
# Section Comments Rationale 

1 157-1 Although we asked to have this included in this 

draft, we have determined that the final line 
should be deleted. 

 

and after a period of voluntary conservation 
measures have failed to provide adequate relief 

for the water shortage depletion. 
 

1) The ambiguity leaves too much room for confusion and debate. 

 
2) The desire to ensure that voluntary measures have been either 

inadequate or are not the proper action can be addressed by adding 

a statement to 157-5 and 157-6.  See below 
 

3) Do not want to have language that can be construed to mean 
that voluntary efforts have to be tried before implementing the 

restrictions (typically they will have, but in extreme cases 

voluntary efforts may be bypassed, based upon the wisdom of the 
Board. 

2 157-5 Change the first sentence from: 

 

Upon its determination that a water shortage 
exists, the Board of Selectmen…… 

 

To 

 

Upon its determination that a water shortage 

exists and that voluntary conservation 
measures have failed or are deemed inadequate 

to provide relief for the water shortage, the 

Board of Selectmen……. 
 

1) This language supports the request from the Board to have 

language that reinforces a desire to have the Board attempt 

voluntary efforts first where possible. 

3 157-6 Change the first sentence from: 

 
Upon its determination that a state of ground 

water depletion exists, the Board of 

Selectmen…… 
 

To 

 
Upon its determination that a state of ground 

1) Same as above 



  

 
water depletion exists and that voluntary 

conservation measures have failed or are 

deemed inadequate to provide relief for the 
water shortage, the Board of Selectmen……. 

 

4 157 – 2 (2) 
and (3)(7) 

In (2), (3) (7) and replace: 
 

The Board of Selectman may consult with the 

Director of Public Works, the Chairman of the 
Town Conservation Commission, and with the 

Farmington Valley Health District, prior to 

making its determination 
 

With 

 
The Board of Selectmen may consult with the 

Water Companies, other government officials, 

the Farmington Valley Health District, and 
other persons the Board shall deem as 

appropriate 

 

1) The Board did not want to name Simsbury government entities 
specifically, but have language leaving it to the wisdom of the 

Board as to who to include. 

5 157 – 2 (6)  Change definition of Water Company from: 

 

Water Company means the Aquarion Water 
Company, the Avon Water Company, or the 

Tariffville Water Company or their successors 

and assigns or any other Water Company 
providing public water supply in the Town 

 

With 
 

Water Company means the Aquarion Water 

Company, the Avon Water Company, or the 
Tariffville Water Company or their successors 

and assigns or any other public utility Water 

Company providing public water supply in the 
Town 

 

 
 

 

6 157-2 Add a definition of “business” 

 

Or and alternative 
 

Can definition of person be expanded to 

explicitly state business.  Person shall be 
construed to mean to include an individual, a 

corporation, a partnership, a business, a trust, 

an unincorporated organization or any other 
group or organization. 

 

1) Just to eliminate any ambiguity on what constitutes a business 

in the ordinance. 

7 157 - 7 The second reference to days should also be 
“business days” as in the first reference. 

 

1) Consistency of language 

8 157 - 6 Although requested in an earlier review please 

delete: 
 

Such action shall be effective 30 days 

following publication of notice of the intent to 

apply the restrictions pursuant to 157-3.  

During such notice period, individuals 

(property is a typo) shall have the right to 
comment on the proposed restrictions. 

 

1) Earlier provisions and later provisions provide adequate 

language for both notification prior, and periodic review after 
implementation. 

2) If there is an emergency it may be detrimental to wait 30 days. 

9 157 - 6 Last sentence….During such period, property 
shall have the right to comment on the 

proposed restrictions.  Property; is this a typo.  

Should it be people, individuals, etc? 

1) Type 

 

7. Adjourn 

 

A motion was made by Mike Paine, seconded by Chris Kelly, and passed by all to adjourn 

the meeting at 6:05 



  

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
Water Shortage Ordinance Subcommittee 

Wednesday, May 2, 2018 
5:00 PM -Tariffville Fire Station - 7 Church Street 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 
PRESENT:  Chris Kelly, Mike Paine 
   
ALSO PRESENT:  Assistant Town Planner Michael Glidden, Tom Roy Director of Public 
Works, Margery Winters, Donald Rieger, Tariffville Village Water Company Members: Brian 
O’Donnell, Mike Tanca, and Kevin Donahue 
 
Call to Order 
 
Mr. Kelly called the meeting to order at 5:00pm.  
 

1) Public Audience  
 
Mr. Kelly asked if there any members of the Public that wished to speak. No one came 
forward.  
 

2) Tariffville Village Water Company's feedback regarding draft Water Shortage 
Ordinance 

Mr. Kelly thanked members of the Tariffville Village Water Company, Conservation 
Commission, and Town staff present at the meeting. Mr. Kelly discussed the status of the 
current proposal and how the changes were made. Copies of the state model, statute, and 
November 2017 version of the water shortage ordinance were distributed to those present.  
 
Brian O’Connell of Tariffville Water Company addressed the group concerning the double 
penalty effect that would result by adopting the current ordinance. Mr. O’Connell explained 
the current regulations Tariffville has in place which deal with conservation. He stated that 
individuals whom ignore conservation measures are subject to shut off of water service and 
require to pay $150.00 for re-connection.  
 
Mr. Rieger commented on the how ground water and water levels of the Farmington River 
are directly connected.  
 
Mr. O’Connell discussed the conservation rules which Tariffville already has in place. He 
provided a suggested change to the ordinance which would address the potential of double 
penalty to customers in Tariffville.  
 
Mr. Paine commented that he wanted to avoid a situation where people were subject to 
double penalties.  
 
Mr. O’Connell explained how better communication between Tariffville and the Town of 
Simsbury could help the situation and avoid such situations.  
 
Mr. Rieger suggested adding to 157-2a that the Town of Simsbury is required to coordinate 
with Tariffville.  
 
Mr. Kelly noted that the intent of the ordinance was not to create a double penalty to citizens 
and therefore would need to be addressed to avoid that. 
Mr. O’Connell discussed the statutory powers granted to Tariffville Water Company. He did 
not want to see an ordinance that would dilute their powers.  
 



  

 

Mr. Rieger commented how the state acts on a larger scale and water planning really needs 
to be locally focused.  
 
Mr. Paine explained how the Board of Selectmen needs to be the policy maker and there 
needs to be balance between policy and the needs of utility companies.  
 
Mr. Rieger felt the penalties of the proposed language by members of Tariffville Water 
Company were too broad and soft.  
 
Mr. Kelly liked the wording presented by Tariffville Water Company as it relates to the 
consulting with the parties.  
 
Mr. Roy proposed a change to the language which would read, “The Town of Simsbury shall 
consult with local water providers to ensure residents are not penalized by multiple entities 
for the same offenses.”  
 
Mr. Roy also noted there are other providers such as operators of community wells which 
should be included in the future conversations.  
 

3) Next Steps 
 
Mr. Kelly thanked everyone in attendance. He explained that the draft will be revised to 
incorporate some of the changes discussed tonight. After the revisions are made, a second 
meeting will be held of the working group to discuss the ordinance.  
 
Mr. Paine expressed his concern of the importance of public outreach regarding the matter. 
The Town will need to work on getting the message out to the target population.  
 
Ms. Winters suggested the town look into contacting interested parties such as the 
operators of the local golf courses or larger agricultural operations.  
 
Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:45 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
  
 
 
 
 
Michael Glidden CFM CZEO  
Assistant Town Planner  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
Water Shortage Ordinance Subcommittee 

Tuesday, May 15, 2018 
9:00AM-Simsbury Town Hall- Main Meeting Room  

SPECIAL MEETING 
 
PRESENT:   Mike Paine 
   
ALSO PRESENT:  Maria Capriola Town Manager, Michael Glidden, Assistant Town 
Planner, Jeff Shea, Town Engineer, Tom Roy Director of Public Works, Donald Rieger 
 
Absent: Chris Kelly, Margery Winters 
 
Call to Order 
 
Mr. Paine called the meeting to order at 9:00 AM. 
 

1) Public Audience  
 
Mr. Paine asked if there any members of the Public that wished to speak. No one came 
forward.  
 

2) Review and Discussion of draft Water Shortage Ordinance 
 

Mr. Paine summarized the meeting with Tarifville Fire District meeting and asked staff to 
discuss comments.  
 
Ms. Capriola explained how staff started reviewing the proposed ordinance. She stated that 
a document has been prepared which illustrates some of the comments and/or concerns 
that the staff has developed. Ms. Capriola felt that because of a lot of the comments from 
the four staff members overlapped, she wanted to review these with the members and see if 
there was a way to address.  
 
Ms. Capriola suggested that the group would review section by section of the proposed 
ordinance so that staff comments could be reviewed in detail. Mr. Paine agreed. Ms. 
Capriola explained that the staff will be reaching out to Aquarion and Connecticut Water to 
review the proposed ordinance with both utility companies so that the document is fully 
vetted by all groups. Mr. Rieger explained that some of the conservation measures outlined 
in the proposed ordinance were similar to those in the Town of Greenwich’s ordinance. He 
felt that Aquarion would be familiar with these and that the company was thinking updating 
their conservation regulations.  
 
Ms. Capriola began the review of staff comments with the group. Mr. Roy reviewed his 
comments in Section 157-1. He explained how changes were meant to clarify the language. 
He felt the proposed was too broad and potentially left to interpretation.  
 
Mr. Roy explained how he edited the definition of threatened water supply to include 
consultation of industry experts. He felt the consultation would help the Town determine 
when there is an environmental issue which warranted conservation measures. 
 
Ms. Capriola reviewed the next comment from Jeff Shea concerning the definition of potable 
water. Mr. Shea felt that clarification as to the definition of potable water needed to be 
provided. He explained how there are wells in Simsbury which are not meant for drinking 
water. Mr. Rieger explained how if the source can be used for drinking purposes then it 
would be subject to the ordinance. Mr. Roy explained the example of many wells in the 



  

 

Northern sections of Simsbury which were compromised due to historical pesticides and 
some residents kept their wells for lawn irrigation purposes. Mr. Paine agreed and stated 
although he is from this section of Simsbury it is concerning that the Town would be 
enforcing these regulations on water company customers while neighbors would be exempt. 
Mr. Roy also agreed and explained how this could cause conflict.  
 
Ms. Capriola stated the next comment was with water companies and community wells. She 
stated there are community wells in Simsbury. Mr. Roy and Mr. Glidden referenced 
community wells such as Ethel Walker School and Quad Hill which were not identified in the 
ordinance. Ms. Capriola discussed how in Mansfield there were several community wells 
which served areas of the community that worked with the town. Mr. Rieger felt these 
community wells would be managed by home owners and others which did not have the 
professional expertise that water companies have. He also explained that community wells 
were regulated by the State Department of Public Health. Ms. Capriola suggested that staff 
contact the State Department of Public Health and get a definition of a community well and 
provide information on how these are regulated by the state. Mr. Glidden volunteered to 
investigate this subject and would report back.  
 
Ms. Capriola stated that staff would invite representatives of Aquarion to discuss the 
regulations. Mr. Roy stated he would coordinate these efforts.  
 
Mr. Glidden asked how the proposed ordinance would affect golf courses such as Simsbury 
Farms which their irrigation ponds are fed by wells. He explained diversion permits from 
CTDEEP may have conservation restrictions and this ordinance would severely restrict 
irrigation practices. Mr. Rieger stated he felt the ordinance would not regulate golf courses.  
 
Ms. Capriola reviewed the next comment from T. Roy concerning drought management plan 
referenced in 157-4. Mr. Roy felt that a drought management plan should be adopted or 
draft before the ordinance. He stated that having the plan in place before a time of crisis 
would better help the community. Ms. Capriola agreed. Mr. Rieger explained that he drafted 
a drought management plan and shared a copy with Ms. Capriola. He felt that the 
developing of such a plan should be tied to a specific event. Mr. Roy, Mr. Glidden, and Ms. 
Capriola expressed their concern with this section.  
 
Ms. Capriola stated the next section 157-5 had several comments. Mr. Shea explained his 
comments regarding recreational uses and how these could apply to Simsbury Farms pool 
complex among others. Mr. Roy also explained his concerns on how the Town would asking 
for conservation from citizens and there would issues on how these similar measures could 
impact town facilities.  
 
Mr. Paine noted that it was almost 10:00 am. Ms. Capriola apologized to the group but she 
explained that the group would have adjourn. She wanted to schedule a follow meeting with 
the group to finish reviewing staff comments. She inquired whether the group would be 
available for a follow meeting on Monday May 21st. Everyone present stated Monday would 
work. Ms. Capriola suggested that the group would meet at 10:00am however she would 
verify with Chris Kelly on his availability. She would follow up with the group on time for the 
special meeting.  
 
 
 

3) Next Steps 
 
Mr. Paine thanked everyone for their efforts and inputs in drafting the water shortage 
ordinance. Ms. Capriola asked that adoption of the meeting minutes from previous meetings 
be table until Chris Kelly is present. Ms. Capriola stated when the ordinance was ready for 



  

 

submission to the Board of Selectmen for adoption that a public hearing would be required 
because of the amount of changes and time since the Board started the process.  
 
Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:59 am. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
  
 
 
 
 
Michael Glidden CFM CZEO  
Assistant Town Planner  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
Water Shortage Ordinance Subcommittee 

Monday, May 21, 2018 
9:30AM-Simsbury Town Hall- Main Meeting Room  

SPECIAL MEETING 
 
PRESENT:   Mike Paine, Chris Kelly 
   
ALSO PRESENT:  Maria Capriola Town Manager, Michael Glidden, Assistant Town 
Planner, Jeff Shea, Town Engineer, Tom Roy Director of Public Works, Donald Rieger 
 
Absent: Margery Winters 
 
Call to Order 
 
Mr. Kelly called the meeting to order at 9:30 AM. 
 

1) Public Audience  
 
Mr. Kelly asked if there any members of the Public that wished to speak. No one came 
forward.  
 

2) Review and Discussion of Draft Water Shortage Ordinance 
 
Ms. Capriola suggested that the group start off the review of the draft with Section 157-6. 
She read comments from Jeff Shea which questioned the application of the ordinance to 
wells. Mr. Rieger all drinkable wells regardless of ownership is private or public would be 
subject to the ordinance. Mr. Paine suggested that well and/or reservoirs be added to the 
section in order to prevent confusion.  
 
Mr. Roy commented how Aquarion uses water from well locations to be distributed to areas 
that are within the service area not just Simsbury. He raised a concern that in a time of 
drought this could be a situation where water is leaving town to an area which may not have 
a structured or active conservation efforts in place. Mr. Roy noted that this issue is one 
which is larger than the ordinance and is not something the group can solve.  
 
Ms. Capriola noted the next section there were comments was 157-7 and 157-9. She noted 
the nature of these comments were lack of delegation of an enforcement official. Ms. 
Capriola suggested that language could be added that was similar to the blight and storm 
water ordinances which delegated enforcement powers to a staff member. Mr. Glidden 
noted the waiver provision which gave some enforcement discretion to staff however it was 
unclear by the draft who would be the primary staff member for the enforcement of the 
ordinance. He mentioned the difficult position staff would be in with the ability to grant 
waivers but no ability to enforce the ordinance.  
 
Mr. Rieger noted that in Greenwich the Police are responsible for enforcing the drought 
ordinance.  
 
Mr. Kelly noted that the waiver provision was intended to avoid having every single request 
for waivers to go before the Board of Selectmen. He understood staffs’ concern though.  
 
Ms. Capriola suggested that staff would provide an appointment language which would 
mirror other ordinance such as blight and/or storm water which would provide appointment 
power for designation of enforcement official.  
 



  

 

Mr. Paine expressed concern on where appeals for the issuance of citations are to be filed. 
Mr. Glidden noted that the language for the appeal section was copied from the storm water 
management ordinance however it could be clarified. He explained other citation appeals 
such as zoning or blight are filed with the official that issued them. Mr. Paine suggested that 
the section be changed to read written request for appeals of citations are to be filed with 
the Town Clerk.  
 
Ms. Capriola reviewed comments to 157-11. She requested clarification on whether the 
section implied the ordinance was intended to be a guideline or mandatory/compelling 
document for the Board of Selectmen. Mr. Rieger stated that it is a requirement. Ms. 
Capriola restated the need for clarification of the overall theme whether it is intended to be 
mandatory or suggestive. Mr. Rieger stated that it is intended to be mandatory. Mr. Paine 
questioned whether the 30 day provision within in this section be changed to not more than 
45 days.  
 
Mr. Rieger stated his concerns regarding changes made to purpose and authority section of 
the proposal. He felt that this section was recommended by town counsel and that it should 
remain. Mr. Roy explained his intentions for changes to the section. He wanted to cut down 
on the wordiness and have to document read easier for people. Mr. Rieger disagreed.  
 
Mr. Kelly noted there are two options for this section. One is to keep the section as 
proposed. Two is to adopt the revised section as noted by Mr. Roy.  
 
Mr. Shea noted he still is unclear on whether the ordinance only applies to water company 
customers or does it apply to private wells.  
 
Mr. Rieger discussed how the ordinance flows thru different stages of conservation.  
 
Mr. Paine noted more information is required to better understand the difference between 
critical vs. threatened.  
 
Mr. Roy suggested adopting language that the State of Connecticut uses for drought 
conditions. Mr. Rieger noted that the Board may not want to tie the language to state 
definitions which are subject to change. Mr. Roy noted flexibility is in the adoption of a plan 
not the ordinance.  
 
Mr. Paine expressed his concerns that he was not in favor of rigid ordinance which prevents 
responses.  
 
Mr. Shea noted the section of a drought management plan was not clear. Mr. Rieger stated 
that the adoption of the plan would be a time where the Town can tool up and the document 
would give personnel direction. Mr. Paine requested that section 157-4 be changed to water 
management plan verses drought management plan.  
 
Mr. Roy noted the need for a detailed plan to be adopted before a time of crisis. He felt there 
were two situations where this ordinance could come into play in this region. One is a 
situation of prolonged lack of rainfall. Two is a short but very dry period that drought 
conditions are rapid.  
 
Mr. Kelly noted the plans would be situation or event specific.  
Mr. Shea asked that Sections 157-6 and 157-7 be re-arranged so that the document read in 
order which would make sense. Mr. Paine agreed and thought a linear layout of the 
document would help. He noted that 2 different rules and lack of organization would create 
chaos. He felt the rules should be consolidated.  
 



  

 

Mr. Kelly noted that the change in definition did not affect the enforcement however he liked 
the separation of terms which was taken in the draft document.  
 
Mr. Roy questioned if there was a way to define water as a public resource. Mr. Rieger 
stated this is issue that the state of Connecticut is dealing with as developing a drought 
management plan.  
 

3) Next Steps 
 
Ms. Capriola stated staff would amend the ordinance and incorporate some of the 
comments and changes discussed. She asked whether the group could schedule a follow 
up special meeting on 06/05/2018 at 10:00am in the Main Meeting Room in the Simsbury 
Town Hall.  
 
Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:59 am. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
  
 
 
 
 
Michael Glidden CFM CZEO  
Assistant Town Planner  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 

 



 

  Town of  Simsbury  
 
933 HOPMEADOW STREET  P.O. BOX 495  SIMSBURY, CONNECTICUT 06070 
 

                             Culture, Parks and Recreation 

 

Telephone  (860) 658-3255 
Facsimile   (860) 408-9283 

 
www.simsbury-ct.gov 

An Equal Opportunity Employer  
8:30 - 4:30  Monday through Friday 

 

 

 

Date:  July 30, 2018 

 

To:    Maria E. Capriolia MPA, Town Manager 

 

 

From : Tom Tyburski CPRP, Director Culture, Parks and Recreation 

 

Re:  Water Shortage Ordinance Referral to Parks and Recreation Commission 

 

 

At the June 28, 2018 regular meeting of the Simsbury Parks and Recreation Commission the proposed 

water shortage ordinance was discussed.   The Commission members understood the purpose of the 

proposed ordinance and posed no objections to it at this meeting. 

 

The members of the Parks and Recreation Commission appreciated the opportunity to review and 

comment on the water shortage proposal. 

 

Culture, Parks and Recreation staff is available to any questions regarding the Parks and Recreation 

Commission’s review of the proposed ordinance. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



    Farmington Valley Health District 
                95 River Road, Suite C   ▪   Canton, CT  06019   ▪   Phone (860) 352-2333   ▪   Fax (860) 352-2542 

 

 
     Avon  •  Barkhamsted  •  Canton  •  Colebrook  •  East Granby  •  Farmington  •  Granby  •  Hartland  •  New Hartford  •  Simsbury 

  

 
July 27, 2018 
 
Maria E. Capriola 
Town Manager 
Town of Simsbury 
933 Hopmeadow Street 
Simsbury, CT 06070 
 
Send Via Email: townmanager@simsbury-ct.gov 
 
 
Dear Ms. Capriola, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to review the Draft Water Shortage Ordinance.  Certainly water conservation 
and protection of our aquifers both every day and during periods of potential and/or actual water shortages 
is something that the Farmington Valley Health District (FVHD) supports and promotes. 
 
After review we offer the following specific comments and/or suggestions: 
 
Section 157-6 Exceptions, Application for Waiver 

The current draft identifies FVHD as the entity responsible for reviewing and making determination 
regarding ALL waivers.  FVHD strongly opposes this language.  While FVHD can serve as a 
subject matter expert on the need to grant waivers specific to public health, FVHD does not have 
the expertise to independently make these same determinations regarding adverse effects on 
livelihood or publicly or privately held capital assets as specified in the current language.  We 
strongly urge you to consider alternative language, perhaps a board of appeals that includes 
individuals with the appropriate expertise to assess the variety of justifications that may be put forth 
by those seeking waivers. 
 

Section 157-4 Stage 2, Critical Water Shortage 
(a) How would residential gardens fit under this criteria? 
(b) We assume that under this criteria, the town pool would be closed as well? FVHD would 

advocate that commercial therapeutic pools (e.g. McLean) be exempt. 
(i) Under extreme heat conditions, there may need to be exceptions for long-term care 

facilities that may operate air conditioning units that use water as a coolant.  Some walk-in 
refrigeration units may also be water cooled. 

 
 

mailto:townmanager@simsbury-ct.gov


Section 157-5 Notice of Water Use Restrictions 
We would request that FVHD be explicitly listed as one of the agencies notified of water use 
restrictions. 

  
 
The ordinance does not appear to address smaller geographic areas within the town of Simsbury.  It is 
conceivable, based on geology, hydrology, aquifers, depth to groundwater and other factors that some 
sections of town may experience critical water shortages while other sections may not.  This may be 
something that you wish to consider. 
 
Please don’t hesitate to contact us should you have any questions regarding our comments.  We look 
forward to working with you as this draft is refined. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
 
Jennifer C. Kertanis, MPH 
Director of Health 
 
 
cc.  D. Kilbon, Chair FVHD Board of Directors 
       M. Appleby, FVHD Board Member (Simsbury) 
       S. Beardsley, FVHD Board Member (Simsbury)  
       J. Shea, FVHD Board Member (Simsbury) 
       D. Harding, FVHD Chief Sanitarian 
  



























TOWN OF SIMSBURY 
DRAFT Water Shortage Ordinance 

Dated June 26, 2018 
 
Sec. 157-1. Authority and Purpose.  
The Town of Simsbury, under its powers pursuant to state law, has adopted this ordinance to protect 
public health and welfare.  This ordinance implements the Town’s authority to impose water use 
restrictions, conditioned upon a finding by the Board of Selectmen that a critical water shortage exists, 
or upon a state of water use restrictions or a declaration of public drinking water supply emergency 
issued by the Department of Public Health pursuant to C.G.S. 25-32b.  
 
The purpose of this ordinance is to protect, preserve and maintain the public health, safety and welfare 
whenever there is in force a finding by the Simsbury Board of Selectmen of a critical water shortage or a 
declaration by the State of Connecticut of a State Water Use Restriction or State of Public Drinking 
Water Supply Emergency by providing for enforcement of any duly imposed restrictions, requirements, 
provisions or conditions imposed by the Town or by the State of Connecticut.  
 
Pursuant to the General Statutes of the State of Connecticut, it is hereby declared to be in the best 
interest of the public health and safety of the residents and citizens of the Town of Simsbury to assist in 
regulating and restricting the use of water during a critical water shortage.  
 
Sec. 157-2. Definitions.  
(a) When used in this ordinance, unless the context otherwise requires:  
 
(1) Authorized Enforcement Agency:  Employees or designees of the town as designated by the Town 
Manager to enforce this ordinance.   
 
(2) Person: Person shall be construed to mean and include an individual, a corporation, a partnership, a 
trust, an unincorporated organization, business organization of any kind or any other group or 
organization.  
 
(3) Town: Town means the Town of Simsbury.  
 
(4) Water: Water means water from water companies, well water and water sources including but not 
limited to: community water systems, ponds, lakes, streams, rivers, and ground water.  Water from rain 
barrels, cisterns or similar devices are excluded from this ordinance.    
 
(5) Water Company: Water Company means the Aquarion Water Company, Connecticut Water 
Company or the Tariffville Fire District or their successors and assigns or any other public utility water 
company providing public water supply in the Town.  
 
(6) Voluntary Conservation Measures: Voluntary Conservation Measures includes any measures 
recommended by the Board of Selectmen in an effort to reduce water consumption in Simsbury.  These 
are recommendations offered without penalty.   
 
(7) Threatened Water Shortage: Threatened water shortage shall exist whenever the Board of 
Selectmen, after there has been consultation with the Water Companies and other persons the Board 
deems appropriate, determines that the adequacy of the Town water supply to meet the demands of 



the Town for health, sanitation and preservation of businesses is threatened. A threatened water 
shortage will also be referred to as a Stage 1 water shortage. 
 
(8) Critical Water Shortage: Critical water shortage shall exist whenever the Board of Selectmen, after 
there has been consultation with the Water Companies and other persons the Board deems 
appropriate, determines that the water supplies available to the Town are at, or are in danger of 
reaching levels insufficient to provide for the normal needs of the public health, preservation of human 
life, sanitation, safety, welfare and economy of the Town. A critical water shortage will also be referred 
to as a Stage 2 water shortage. 
 
Sec. 157-3. Stage 1, Threatened Water Shortage.  
Upon its determination that there is a Stage 1 threatened water shortage, the Board of Selectmen may 
instruct the Town Manager to prepare and implement a water management plan, or, if such a plan 
already exists, to update it as the Town Manager deems necessary.  Such water management plan shall 
address the staffing and processes by which Town staff will address needs occasioned by the threatened 
water shortage, and its implementation may include, among other activities, consultations with other 
parties and preparation of recommendations to the Board of Selectmen, including, among other 
matters, those concerning voluntary water conservation matters. 
  
Sec. 157-4. Stage 2, Critical Water Shortage.   
Upon  its determination that a Stage 2 critical water shortage exists, and that voluntary conservation 
measures were implemented and have failed or are deemed inadequate to provide relief for the critical 
water shortage, the Board of Selectmen after consultation with the Water Companies and other persons 
the Board deems appropriate, shall have the power to declare to be unlawful some or all of the 
following acts, subject to such reasonable and necessary exceptions as determined by the Board of 
Selectmen to be in the public interest. Such action shall be effective upon publication pursuant to §157-
5 of this Chapter:  
 
(a) Using water to sprinkle, water or irrigate any plants, lawns, grass, ground covers, vines, flowers, 
shrubbery, trees or any other vegetation unless necessary to sustain food crops, crops for harvest or 
stocks of a business inventory;  
 
(b) Using water for private and/or public recreational, ornamental or decorative purposes, including but 
not limited to fountains, pools or ponds;  
 
(c) Using water to wash or clean motor vehicles or trailers unless done as a means of livelihood at a 
commercial facility. This restriction shall not apply to vehicles required by law to be washed or cleaned 
for sanitary, health or safety reasons;  
 
(d) Using water to wash or flush sidewalks, driveways, pavements, porches or other outdoor surfaces;  
 
(e) Using water to wash the outside of buildings or structures;  
 
(f) Using water to wash or clean windows unless done as means of livelihood and only then by washing 
or cleaning exclusively from a bucket or container of three (3) gallons capacity or less;  
 
(g) Using water from fire hydrants, other than for health or safety;  
 



(h) Permitting exterior water supply lines to remain in a state of disrepair, resulting in the escape of 
water;  
 
(i) Operating an air-conditioning device or system using water as a coolant unless the same shall be of 
the water recirculating type;  
 
(j)   Such other uses and activities as the Board of Selectmen shall declare following public comment at a 
noticed meeting of the Board of Selectmen.   
 
The Board of Selectmen may phase in the restrictions to tailor them according to the severity and nature 
of the critical water shortage.  
 
Sec. 157-5. Notice of Water Use Restrictions.  
If the Board of Selectmen imposes restrictions under §157-4 or modifies existing restrictions to make 
them stricter or more inclusive, it shall notify the Connecticut Department of Public Health and the 
Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection in writing within fourteen (14) days of 
the effective date of the restrictions or changes.  The Board of Selectmen shall give public notice of such 
restrictions or changes before they become effective.    
 
Sec. 157-6. Exceptions, Application for Waiver.  
Any water users that consider the restrictions, as imposed, to adversely affect their livelihood, publicly 
or privately held capital assets, health or sanitation, may make written application for a waiver.  Any 
such application shall be directed to the attention of the Board of Selectmen, which shall refer the 
application, within three (3) business days, to the Farmington Valley Health District with the request that 
it make a recommendation, within three (3) business days if possible, as to whether a waiver should be 
granted. Following receipt of the recommendation, or in absence of receiving a recommendation from 
the Health District after three (3) business days have passed since submitting the waiver application, the 
Board of Selectmen may make a determination to approve or deny the waiver request.  The Board of 
Selectmen may opt to delegate to Town staff the decision whether to approve or deny a waiver request.   
 
Whenever the Board of Selectmen, or Town staff exercising delegated authority, shall make an 
exception pursuant to §157-4 it may attach reasonable conditions.   
 
Sec. 157-7. Use of Water to Maintain Health Standards.  
The Farmington Valley Health District shall have the authority to permit a reasonable use of water in any 
case necessary to maintain adequate health and sanitation standards.  
 
Sec. 157-8. Violations and Penalties.  
Whenever the authorized enforcement agency determines that a person has violated an enacted 
prohibition as identified in 157-4 during a Stage 2 critical water shortage, the authorized enforcement 
agency is authorized to issue a fine to the violator in the amount of one hundred dollars ($100.00) for 
each offense.  Each violation of a separate section shall be considered a separate offense and shall not 
merge with a violation of any other section. Any violation continued more than one (1) day shall 
constitute a separate offense for each day such violation continues. The Town of Simsbury shall consult 
with Water Companies to ensure residents are not penalized by multiple entities for the same offenses.  
 
  



Sec. 157-9. Appeals.   
Any person receiving a fine may appeal the determination of the authorized enforcement agency.  The 
notice of appeal must be received in writing and filed with the Town Clerk’s Office within ten (10) 
business days from receipt of the notice of the fine.  For this purpose, notice shall be deemed received 
three (3) calendar days from the date of the notice.  Hearing on the appeal before the Hearing Officer 
shall take place within thirty (30) business days from the date of receipt of the notice of appeal. The 
decision of the Hearing Officer shall be final.  
 
Sec. 157-10. Termination of Prohibitions.  
Any actions of the Board of Selectmen taken under this Chapter shall continue in effect until the Board 
of Selectmen determines that there is no continuing need for restrictions.  The Board of Selectmen shall 
review any finding of a water shortage or state of ground water depletion at least every thirty (30) days 
from the date of the initial finding.  The Board of Selectmen shall cause notice of the various 
terminations to be published in the manner provided for in §157-3.  
 
Sec. 157-11. Invalidity.  
If any part, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or other portion of this Chapter is, for any reason held 
invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed to be a 
separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions hereof. 
 
 


	Agenda
	Minutes: June 20, 2017
	Minutes: May 2, 2018
	Minutes: May 15, 2018
	Minutes: May 21, 2018
	Culture, Parks and Recreation Commission Response
	Fire District Response
	FVHD Response
	Hop Meadow Country Club Response
	Planning Commission Response
	Zoning Commission Response
	Water Shortage Ordinance 6-26-18

